	
	


 

Far Horizons was ultramodern
Longboat Lore
By Barry Walsh, Guest Writer
Thursday, December 14, 2000

Herb Field was on a roll. In 1956, two years after building the Colony Beach Club, he purchased a heavily-wooded Gulf-front tract at 2401 Gulf of Mexico Drive. With a partner, Bud Levitas of Long Island (a Colony guest), he paid the Browning interests $42,000 for lots 7 and 8 of Longboat Acres. The tract was 200 feet wide by 650 feet deep from the Gulf waters to Gulf of Mexico Drive, then a cracked concrete road known as Ringling Boulevard. Sarasota architect Tim Siebert designed the main building and beach cottages, dark gray with white trim, which were built later that year. 

Field recalled (in a 1983 Longboat Observer article), “The Colony was for families, the Far Horizons was dressier and didn’t allow children, and the Sleepy Lagoon Rendezvous ... was the place to go for drinks, dining, entertainment and other diversions. Remember, there was no north-end bridge in those days, and Longboat was pretty wild, but getting more popular every day.” With Far Horizons under construction, Field also purchased General Harris’ Sleepy Lagoon Rendezvous and renamed it The Buccaneer. He was on his way to becoming the largest landowner on the Key. The Far Horizons opened in 1957, and the following year, another Colony guest, Jack Kahn, retired television and hosiery executive, bought out the Levitas interest. In 1959, Kahn bought out Field, who complained that he was “getting high blood pressure trying to run The Colony, Far Horizons and The Buccaneer.” A 1962 Key Notes article reported that “stunning resorts, ranging from the ultramodern to the tranquilly rustic are in sharp contrast with tangled patches of lush, tropical jungle” along “12 miles of unbroken white sand beaches” that “slope gently down to meet the fire blue water.” That same year, Chef Harold Wuelfrath began his popular 20-year reign at the Far Horizons restaurant. 

Kahn and his son, Jack Chris Kahn, ran Far Horizons for 17 years, joining the ranks of Longboat’s renowned innkeepers. They purchased adjacent land to the south for tennis courts and added more cottages, eventually providing convention facilities for 200. They regularly hosted celebrities such as U.S. presidential candidate Ed Muskie and West German Prime Minister Willie Brandt and his entourage. After retiring, Jack Kahn wrote a weekly column called Kahncerns for The Longboat Observer, and Jack Chris Kahn became a travel and accommodations consultant in Sarasota. 

In 1976, a Swiss corporation led by François Gardinier purchased the Far Horizons from the Kahns. The Gardinier group, with large phosphate holdings in Florida and wineries in France, operated the resort for seven years. In 1983, Jack Shire bought the resort and formed a Far Horizons Corporation, which developed plans for a 71-unit condo and restaurant. The plans, however, were disapproved by the town. Project financing faltered, and after September 1984, the elegant resort stood empty. 

At that time, Dr. Murray Klauber, who had purchased the Colony, and Realtor Michael Saunders were seeking a site for The Reserve, a planned luxury spa with 14 townhouses. Klauber purchased the Far Horizons and in his development plans reported $7.5 million in land costs. In a 28-year period, Gulf-front land had skyrocketed in value. Klauber obtained a building permit for The Reserve, but when that permit was revoked, he sued the town in federal court and ultimately won. Today the Vizcaya condominiums stand on the old Far Horizons site, continuing a tradition of Longboat elegance. 



